

DIPLOMANIA

INCLUDES H Y D R O P H O B I A

DIPLOMANIA Supplement ---- NJF Games Bureau Diplomacy Division ---- Issue Number 27
Editor and Publisher: Don Miller - - - - - 10 July 1968

This issue includes Postal Diplomacy Games:

<u>PAA</u> (1965V) (draw) (pg 2)	<u>PSC</u> (1967AQ) (Su04) (p5)	<u>DEE-B</u> (1966AMn) (Sp07)
<u>PEA</u> (1966K) (F11) (pp 2,3)	<u>PXC</u> (1968L) (A/WO2) (p5,6)	(p9)
<u>PFC</u> (1966T) (FO8) (pg 3)	<u>PDB</u> (1966Eh) (F78) (p6)	<u>DAA</u> (1966Cf) (WO7) (p9)
<u>PHC</u> (1966AS) (A/WO8) (pp 3,4)	<u>PME</u> (1967Fv) (FO5) (p6,7)	<u>DCA</u> (1966Hf) (Su06) (p9,10)
<u>PJC</u> (1966AZ) (A/WO7) (pg 4)	<u>DJI</u> (1967Bah) (Sp04) (p7)	<u>DGA</u> (1966wf) (Su06) (p10)
<u>PLC</u> (1967B) (FO6) (pg 4)	<u>DKJ</u> (1967Cai) (FO4) (p7,8)	<u>DBB</u> (1966Dg) (A/WO6) (p10)
<u>PPC</u> (1967AC) (FO4) (pp 4,5)	<u>SBB</u> (1967Xav) (FO3) (p8)	<u>DIH</u> (1967Aag) (Su04) (p10)
<u>PRC</u> (1967AP) (Su04) (pg 5)	<u>DEE-A</u> (1966Mn) (Sp07) (p8,9)	

Remainder of games will appear in DPBA #28, out in one week.

The Players -- New roster will be out in DPBA #28 or 29. New players in above games are: Beyerlein (PPC,PRC,PXC); Gemignani (PSC); Von Metzke (DEE); Linden(DBB).

Replacement Players -- Needed for PJC(ENG), PDB(TUR), PME(A-H,FRA), DJI(FRA), DKJ(A-H,ENG?), DEE(ITA,RUS), DGA(A-H); also, PVC(ENG), DHG(TUR,A-H?,ITA?).

The Gamesmasters -- For all games but DHG, Don Miller, 12315 Judson Rd., Wheaton, Md., 20906 (ph. 301-933-5417); call only between 8 & 10 p.m. EDT weekdays except Fri. For DHG, Terry Kuch, 1910 13th St., North, Apt. 204, Arlington, Va., 22201 (JA5-2169).

The "House-Rules" -- As published in DIPLOMANIA #18; read these carefully!

Miscellaneous -- Sorry to have to put publication of moves in former FANTASIA, ASTRA, HYSTERIA, SCHIZOPHRENIA, and BARAD-DUR games off until #28, but it will take 2 or 3 issues to get these games in rotation with about 15 per issue. Until then, please bear with us -- the games that are delayed will only be a week late. #####
Players note that, for the purposes of H-R #45, unit "furthest from home" is interpreted to mean furthest in time (i.e., number of provinces) rather than in distance. #####
Officially signed up (i.e., paid) for Major Powers in Hypereconomic (DMK) are Frank Clark, Kenneth Porter, Steve Cartier, Sid Cochran, Cole Harrison (still owes \$1), and Michael McIntyre (still owes \$1), so only one Major Power position remains open. Several persons have signed up for Major Neutrals, but only Dan Evans and Wayne Hoheisel have paid, and neither has indicated choice of countries. You all out there, please get your money (\$3 for Major Power, \$2 for Major Neutral, \$1 for Minor Neutral) and your choice of countries (choice given only for Major and Minor Neutrals) in soon so game may start. Remember, it is almost impossible for a person to get knocked out of this game except by choice, no matter which country he plays! Rules in DIPLOMANIA #19/20 (50¢). ##### DIPLOMANIA (Diplomacy genzine) 25¢ ea, 5/\$1.

DIPLOMANIA

% D. Miller

12315 Judson Road

Wheaton, Md., 20906

TO:

FIRST CLASS MAIL

PAA (Variant-Regular Game #1) -- WAR ENDS IN FOUR-WAY DRAW! LONGEST DIPLOPHOBIA
GAME ENDS IN STALEMATE!

The Players, Rules & Board -- See DPBA #'s 1 and 7.

Propaganda --

Berlin -- We accept a draw.

England -- I accept a draw.

Italy -- Italy accepts 4-way draw.

Turkey -- The Government of the Ottoman Emperor Sultan Allan Alhazred Hashish, having made the offer of peace, now in accordance with diplomatic procedure, officially accepts an honorable peace with the United Kingdom and the German Reich. Since we have the most units we have the satisfaction of knowing we really won.

GM -- Ah! One down and 47 more to go....

PEA (Variant-Regular Game #4) -- LAST TURKISH CENTER FALLS TO AUSTRIA-HUNGARY!
GERMANY SENDS FRENCH FORCES REELING!

The Players, Rules & Board -- See DPBA #'s 1, 2, 8, and 19.

FAIL, 1911 moves --

A-H (Lebling) -- F Ion-Tyn; F Nap (S) F Ion-Tyn; F Tun (S) F Ion-Tyn; F Adr-Ion;
F WMe-Mid; A Rom (H); A Ven-Tus; A Tyo (S) A Pie; A Ukr (S) GER A Mos-Sev; A Rum
(S) GER A Mos-Sev; A Ank (H); A Smy-Con; A Pie (U).

FRA (Mazor) -- A Bel (S) A Bur (A Bel D (Pic or o.b.)); A Bur (S) A Bel; A Mar (S) A
Bur; F Lyo-Spa(SC), F Tyn-Lyo; F EnG-Mid; A Wal-Lon.

GER (Latimer) -- A Mos-Sev; A Mun-Bur; A Kie-Ber; A Ruh-Bel; A Hol (S) A Ruh-Bel;
A Edi-Lvp; F NtS (S) A Ruh-Bel; F Nwg-Nat; F Hel (H).

TUR (Naus) -- A Sev-Arm.

Supply Centers held at end of AUT '09 (retreat does not affect count) --

A-H -- Bud, Bul, Con, Gre, Nap, Rom, Rum, Ser, Smy, Tri, Tun, Ven, Vie, Ank
(May build one unit). (14)

FRA -- ~~Bel~~, Bre, ~~Adi~~ (SPR Supply-Center Rule), ~~Lvp~~, Lon, Mar, Par, Por, Spa
(remove one unit). (6)

GER -- Ber, Den, Hol, Kie, Mos, Mun, Nwy, StP, Sev, Swe, War, Bel, Lvp (may
build only one unit, as there is only one open home supply center). (13)

TUR -- ~~Ank~~ (remove one unit; OOG). (0)

Propaganda --

Gibraltar (31 Oct 1909) -- For the first time since the 18th century, the gateway to
the Mediterranean has fallen by force of arms. The Austrian Second Fleet, after
two months of steady bombardment, has forced the small Anglo-French garrison to
surrender. The victory was a bitter one, however, for in the confusion, General
Dimmelroi, the French commander in Iberia, was allowed to escape into Spain. #####
There is jubilation in the Austrian navy tonight, in spite of the disappointment, for
for the first time in centuries is the Inner Sea controlled by its own people.

Vienna (7 November 1909) -- In historic actions, the Assembly of the Central European
Federation today made the Kingdom of Egypt, the Kingdom of Libya, the Republic and
Free City of Algiers members of its community of nations. Embracing as it now does,
almost the entire Mediterranean shoreline, and most of the old Roman Empire, the CEF
is the most powerful union to be formed since the United States of America in 1776.
Begun in 1903 as a successor to the Habsburg Empire, it expanded to include the
Kingdom of Italy, after the new Federation intervened in civil strife in that penin-
sula. Then came the war with Turkey, now drawing to a close, which saw the Federa-
tion reach the Indian Ocean and the sources of the Nile. The actions completed
today, making Egypt, Libya, and Algeria full members of the Federation, underscore
the multi-national and multi-racial character of the organization. If and when its
acknowledged goal of uniting the peoples of the Mediterranean is fulfilled, it will
become, after China, the largest and most productive nation of the earth. #####
There is even, in the minds of some politicians of the Federation, as far off and
remote as it may seem, hope for a union of the two greatest powers of Europe. "Not
only", as one official put it, "a united Christendom but a united Mohammedanism
as well" -- a dream even Charlemagne and Caesar never shared.

Deadline for AUTUMN, 1909 retreat (FRA: A Bel) and WINT '09 builds/removals -- Noon, Tues., July 23 (SPRING 1910 deadline will be August 6).

PFC (Regular Diplomacy Game #1) -- THREE NATIONS BATTLE OVER NORTH SEA, BUT NO ONE GETS IN!

The Players, Rules & Board -- See DPBA #'s 1, 2, 8, 14, 18, and 22.
FALL, 1908 moves --

A-H (Hoheisel) -- A Vie-Tri, A Gal-Rum, A Bud (S) A Gal-Rum; A Ser (S) A Gal-Rum.
ENG (Gemignani) -- A Yor-Lon; F Edi-NtS.
FRA (Latimer) -- F Lon-NtS.
ITA (Huff) -- F Bre-EnC; F Mid-Iri; F Tyn-WMe; F Ion (H); A Pie-Tyo; A Tus-Pie; A Gas-Bur; A Par (S) A Gas-Bur.
RUS (Schelz) -- F NtS-EnC; F Bel (S) F NtS-EnC; F Hol-NtS; A War-Sil; A Mos-Lvn; A StP-Nwy; A Mun (H); A Ruh (H).
TUR (Lebling) -- F Alb-Tri; F Aeg (S) A Con-Bul; A Con-Bul; F Bla (S) A Rum; A Sev (S) A Rum; F Smy-Con (A in Smy, not F); A Rum (H).

Error in DIPLOPHOBIA #26 -- Under SUMMER, 1908 retreats, add "FRA (Latimer): NMR; GM (E) Retreating A Par."

Supply Centers held at end of FALL '08 (no AUTUMN retreats) --

A-H -- Bud, Ser, Tri, Vie (stands pat). (4)
ENG -- Edi, Lvp (stands pat). (2)
FRA -- Lon, ~~Vie~~ (stands pat; 1 unit was dest. SUM '08). (1)
ITA -- Bre, Mar, Nap, Por, Rom, Spa, Tun, Ven, Par (may build one unit). (9)
RUS -- Bel, Ber, Den, Hol, Kie, Mun, Nwy, StP, Swe, War (may build two units; was two units short last year). (10)
TUR -- Ank, Bul, Con, Gre, Mos, Rum, Sev, Smy (may build one unit; one unit was dest. SPR '08). (8)

Propaganda --

Constantinople -- It is with grave misgivings that we look at the Russian demarche in the Ukraine. While peacefully complying with the provisions of our recent treaty, Russian and Austrian troops attacked and massacred our Army of the North. The government of the Ottoman Empire reminds Russia that without our aid it would never have come to power, and likewise without our efforts on its behalf, would never have even been allowed to regain its homeland at all. ##### We commend to the gaze of the Czar the fertile Austrian plain as a target for his obvious avarice. It is most doubtful that any military force of any size can regain the Crimea for the Russias without our consent. However, the Austrian realms of Galicia and Bohemia are most open to your reach. Our aid, of course, would help you to gain Austrian territory for your own use. We have little doubt that our nations can work profitably together. We hope you share our confidence.

England -- France: I hate to say, "I told you so."

Moscow -- As the Russian leader was taking in the town he was shown the upcoming military plans, which ruined his vacation. His crossed fingers do not help his tennis game at all.

St. Petersburg -- Contrary to the accounts of numerous romors circulating at this moment there is no agreement between the Russian people and the Turks, and there never will be until every Turkish body is either six feet under or south of the border.

Deadline for WINTER, 1908 builds -- Noon, Tues., July 23 (Deadline for SPRING 1909 moves will be August 6).

PHC (Regular Diplomacy Game #2) -- RETREATING ENGLISH ARMY LIVONIA DROWNED IN BALTIC STORM AS IT TRIES TO BOARD BALTIC FLEET!

The Players, Rules & Board -- See DIPLOPHOBIA #'s 2, 5, 11, 14, & 18.

AUTUMN, 1908 retreats -- ENG (Hoheisel): NMR; GM (E) Retreating A Lvn; FRA (Huff): A Tyo (R) Tri; A Ven (R) Pie.

WINTER, 1908 builds -- ENG: NMR; stands pat.

Positions at end of WINT '08 -- ENG: A's Den, Hol, Ruh, Bre; F's NtS, EnC, Bel, Bal, StP (9 -- 1 short); FRA: A's Tri, Tus, Pie, Mun, Kie, Par; F's Tun, Tyn, Lyo (9); ITA (Lebling): A Ven; F's Nap, Rom (3); TUR (Greene): A's Rum, Ser, Tyo, Boh, War, Lvn, Mos, Sil; F's Aeg, Gre, Adr, Ion (12). (ENG F StP is StP(SC).
Deadline for SPRING, 1909 moves -- Noon, Tues., July 30.

PJC (Regular Diplomacy Game #4) -- RETREATING GERMAN ARMY RETAKES BERLIN! RUSSIA AUGMENTS MILITARY STRENGTH WITH 3 NEW ARMIES!
The Players, Rules & Board -- See DPBA #'s 4, 11, & 17. Replacement needed for Dave Francis (ENG); if interested, contact GM NLT July 23 (& send SPR '08 moves).
AUTUMN, 1907 retreats -- GER (Latimer): A Mun (R) Ber; TUR (Bryant): F Ion (R) EMe.

WINTER, 1907 builds/removals -- ENG (Open): NMR; GM (E) A Swe; GER: (E) F Ska; RUS (Munroe): (B) A Mos; (E) A War; TUR: (B) A Con.
Positions at end of WINT '07 -- A-H (Huff): A Bud (1); ENG: F's Bar, Den (2); FRA (Lebling): A's Fin, Lon, Pic, Ruh, Tun; F's Nwg, Nwy, NtS, EnC, Tyn, Ion (11); GER: A's Vie, Ber (2); ITA (Koning): A Ven; F's Tri, Apu, Nap (4); RUS: A's Mos, StP, War, Gal, Ser, Mun, Kie; F's Rum, Hol (9); TUR: A's Con, Gre; F's Adr, EMe, Aeg (5).
Deadline for SPRING, 1908 moves -- Noon, Tues., July 30.

PLC (Regular Diplomacy Game #6) -- AUSTRIA, TURKEY EXCHANGE SUPPLY CENTERS IN BALKANS! RUSSIAN ARMY HIBERNATES!

The Players, Rules & Board -- See DPBA #'s 7, 14, and 15.
FALL, 1906 moves --
A-H (Bryant) -- A Gal (S) TUR A Bud-Vie; F Tri (H) (D (Alb or o.b.)); A Ser (S) F Bul(SC)-Rum; F Bul(SC)-Rum (impossible); A Gre (S) A Ser.
ENG (Carey) -- F NtS (H); F Nwg (S) F NtS; F EnC (S) F NtS.
FRA (Leitch) -- A Bre (S) A Pic-Par; A Pic-Par.
GER (Tretick) -- A Arm-Sev; A War-Mos; A Bur-Mar; A Bel-Bur; A Mun-Tyo; F Den-NtS; F Nwy (S) F Den-NtS; F Hol (S) F Den-NtS; F Kie-Hel.
ITA (Haramis) -- F Ion-Tyn; F Adr (S) A Tyo-Tri; A Ven (S) A Tyo-Tri; A Gas-ifar; A Vie (S) A Tyo-Tri (A Vie D (Boh or o.b.)); A Tyo-Tri.
RUS (Mazor) -- A Mos (U).
TUR (Naus) -- F Smy (H); A Con-Ank; F Bla-Rum; A Rum-Bud; A Bud-Vie.
Supply Centers held at end of AUT '06 (retreats do not affect count) --
A-H -- ~~Via~~, Gre, ~~Rum~~, ~~Tri~~, ~~Vie~~, Ser, Bul (remove two units). (3)
ENG -- Edi, Lvp, Lon (stands pat). (3)
FRA -- Bre, Par (stands pat). (2)
GER -- Bel, Ber, Den, Hol, Kie, Mun, Nwy, StP, Sev, Swe, War (may build two units; was 2 short last year). (11)
ITA -- Mar, Nap, Por, Rom, Spa, Tun, Ven, Tri (may build two units; was one short, as one was dest. SUM '06). (8)
RUS -- Mos (stands pat). (1)
TUR -- Ank, ~~Bel~~, Con, Smy, ~~Sev~~, Bud, Rum, Vie (may build one unit). (6)
GM Note -- Paul Leitch, I used the first set of moves you sent because the 2nd set came thru garbled and I couldn't wait for delivery of the telegram.

Propaganda --
Germany -- Germany demands surrender of English forces, lands, and wealth.
Turkey -- Germany: Pray tell what the _____ that army is doing in Armenia.
Deadline for AUT '06 retreats (A-H: F Tri; ITA: A Vie) and WINT '06 builds/removals -- Noon, Tues., July 23 (SPRING '07 deadline will be Aug. 6).

PPC (Regular Diplomacy Game #9) -- AUSTRIA-HUNGARY GOES WILD AND ATTACKS FOUR COUNTRIES SIMULTANEOUSLY! RUSSIA ELIMINATED!
The Players, Rules & Board -- See DPBA #'s 10, 11, 14, 22, 25. Beyerlein in RUSSIA.

FALL, 1904 moves --

A-H (Tretick) -- A Lvn-Mos (STAB!); A Ukr-War; F Aeg-Bul(SC) (STAB!); A Tyo-Mun (STAB!);
 A Pie-Mar (STAB!); A Tri-Ven (OUCH!); F Adr (S) A Tri-Ven; F Apu (S) A Tri-Ven.
 ENG (Lebling) -- F Bar-Nwg; F NtS-Lon; F Ska-Den; F Swe (S) F Ska-Den; A StP (S) A-H A
 Lvn-Mos.
 FRA (Houghton) -- F EnC-Lon; A Wal (S) F EnC-Lon; A Bur (S) A-H A Tyo-Mun; F Tun-Tyn;
 F Mid-Nat; A Bel (U) (D (Pic or o.b.)).
 GER (Haramis) -- F Hel (S) A Den; A Den (H); A Ruh-Bel; A Hol (S) A Ruh-Bel; A Kie (U).
 ITA (Schelz) -- F Rom-Nap (note A Rom, not F); A Ven (H) (D (Pie, Tyo, Tus, o.b.)).
 RUS (Beyerlein) -- No units on board.
 TUR (M. Miller) -- F Nap (S) A-H F Aeg-Ion (A-H F Aeg not so ordered); A Mos (S) A
Arm-Sev. (A Mos D (Lvn, Ukr, o.b.)); F Con-Aeg; F EMe (S) A-H F Aeg-Ion (A-H F Aeg
 not so ordered); A Arm-Sev.

Supply centers held at end of AUT '04 (retreats do not affect count) --

A-H -- Bud, Gre, Rum, Ser, Tri, Ven, Vie, War, Mun, Mos, Mar, Bul (may only
 build three units, as only 3 home supply centers are open). (12)
 ENG -- Edi, Lvp, Lon, Nwy, Swe, StP (stands pat). (5)
 FRA -- ~~Bel~~, Bre, ~~Mar~~, Par, Por, Spa, Tun, Lon (pat; was 1 short last year). (6)
 GER -- Ber, Den, Hol, Kie, ~~Mar~~, Bel (stands pat). (5)
 ITA -- ~~Nap~~, Rom (remove one unit). (1)
 RUS -- ~~Mos~~, ~~StP~~ (none on board to remove; OOG). (0)
 TUR -- Ank, ~~Bul~~, Con, Sev, Smy, Nap (stands pat). (5)

Propaganda --

Austria -- Certain demands upon Austrian mobilization have angered this country,
 which retaliates with certain indicated suicidal tendencies.

England -- France!!! Yes, you: What is this stuff? I am surprised that you would
 do this, when there are such easier pickings in Germany and Italy. Also, if you
 will take a quick peek at, of, POC, for example, you will notice that the Western
 powers are fighting among themselves -- while the East cleans up. I am naming no
 names, but if a certain Eastern Power whose initials are Austria is not stopped,
 your "conquest" of England is going to be a rather shallow victory. You need
 those fleets in the Med, not in the North -- you may soon find Austrian fleets
 overwhelming you -- and don't say I didn't warn you!

Rome -- Are there not any good Samaritans in this world?

Deadline for AUTUMN, 1904 retreats (FRA: A Bel; ITA: A Ven; TUR: A Mos) and
WINT '04 builds/removals -- Noon, Tues., July 23 (Deadline for SPR '05 moves Aug.6).

PRC (Regular Diplomacy Game #11) -- RUSSIAN COMMANDER STILL AWOL AS ORDERLY CON-
 TINUES TO WRITE ORDERS FOR RUSSIAN UNITS!

The Players, Rules & Board -- See DPBA #'s 14,21,25. Beyerlein now in GERMANY.
SUMMER, 1904 retreat -- RUS (Nemeth; retreat made by Standby Player IAW General
 Orders on hand with GM): A Rum (R) Sev.

Deadline for FALL '04 moves -- Noon, Tues., July 23 (A/W orders due Aug. 6).

PSC (Regular Diplomacy Game #12) -- FRENCH ARMY IN BELGIUM RETREATS IN WRONG DIREC-
 TION, DROWNS IN NORTH SEA!

The Players, Rules & Board -- See DPBA #'s 14,18,25. Gemignani now playing A-H.
SUMMER, 1904 retreat -- FRA (Houghton): NMR; GM (E) Retreating A Bel.

Deadline for FALL '04 moves -- Noon, Tues., July 23 (A/W orders due Aug. 6).

PXC (Regular Diplomacy Game #17) -- COUP IN ITALY! GERMAN, RUSSIAN, TURKISH ARMED
 STRENGTH GROWS!

The Players, Rules & Board -- See DPBA #20. Beyerlein is now playing ITALY.

AUTUMN, 1902 retreats -- A-H (Mazor): NMR; GM (E) Retreating A Tri; RUS (Price):
 F Swe (R) Bot.

WINTER, 1902 builds/removals -- GER (D. Reiter): (B) F Kie; (B) A Ber; RUS (Price): (B) A StP; (B) A Mos; (B) A Sev; TUR (Hueston): (B) F Smy; (B) F Con.
Positions at end of WINT '02 -- A-H: A Vie (1); ENG (Bischoff): A Nwy; F's Hel, Edi, Nwg (4); FRA (Zumstein): A's Gas, Mar, Par; F's WMe, Lyo (5); GER: A's Ber, Mun, War, Lvn, Den; F's Swe, Kie, Hol (8); ITA (Beyerlein): A's Pie, Ven; F Tun (3); RUS: A's Sev, Mos, StP, Tri; F's Ank, Bot; A Fin (7); TUR: A's Ser, Gre; F's Con, Smy, Ion, Nap (6).
Deadline for SPRING, 1903 moves -- Noon, Tues., July 30.

PDB (3x3 Team Game) -- WAR ON WANE AS LEADERS SEEK A CEASE-FIRE!

The Players, Rules and Board -- See DPBA #'s 1-5, 18, 21, & VARIOSO #2. Replacement player needed for TURKEY; contact GM NLT July 23 if interested.

FALL, 1878 moves -- (Team Captains' countries are underlined)

RAT's: A-H (Latimer) -- A Boh-Sil; A Tyo (S) A Ven-Pie; A Rom-Tus; A Ven-Pie; F Adr-Ven; F Ion (S) TUR F Tyn.

RUS (Lebling) -- A War-Mos; A Sev (S) A War-Mos; A Ukr (S) A War-Mos; A Gal-Sil; F Gre (S) A-H F Ion.

TUR (Open) -- F Tyn (U); F Nap (U); A Apu (U).

FEG's: ENG (Hoheisel) -- FNAf (U); F WMe (U); F Mid (U); F Bot (U); A Lvn (U); A Mos (U) (D (StP or o.b.)).

FRA (Gemignani) -- F Mar (H); A Ruh (H); F Spa(SC) (H); F Tun (H); A Pie (H) (A); A Tus (H); F Lyo (H).

GER (Huff) -- A Sil-War; A Pru (S) A Sil-War; A Mun (H); A Kie-Ber; F Bal (H).

Supply Centers held at end of AUT '78 (retreat does not affect count) --

RAT's: A-H -- Bud, Rom, Ser, Tri, Ven, Vie (stands pat). (6)

RUS -- Bul, Con, Gre, Mos, Rum, Sev, War (pat; 1 short but no open s.c.). (6)

TUR -- Ank, Nap, Smy (stands pat). (3)

FEG's: ENG -- Edi, Lvp, Lon, Nwy, StP, Swe (stands pat). (6)

FRA -- Bel, Bre, Mar, Par, Por, Spa, Tun (build one; only 6 on board). (7)

GER -- Ber, Den, Hol, Kie, Mun, War (may build one unit). (6)

Team count: FEG's, 19; RAT's, 15.

GM Note -- The two Team Captains have decided that, pending approval by the team members, to either call this game a draw or fight it out as a two-man game. We therefore call upon the team members (Latimer, Hoheisel, and Gemignani) to let the GM know no later than July 23 if it's o.k. with them to place the game completely in the hands of the two Team Captains to do with what they please. And we call upon the two Team Captains to let us know, also NLT July 23, to let us know whether they have decided to call the game a draw or to fight it out as a two-man game.

Deadline for response from all PDB players -- Noon, Tues., July 23 (AUTUMN '78 retreat (ENG: A Mos) and WINT '78 builds will be due Jul. 30 unless game is ended).

PME (Calhamer 5-Man Diplomacy) -- ANARCHY IN AUSTRIA-HUNGARY AND FRANCE AS TURKEY'S POWER GROWS!

The Players, Rules & Board -- See DPBA #'s 8, 14, 15, & VARIOSO #1. Replacements are needed for A-H and FRANCE. Contact GM NLT July 23 (with WINTER builds/removals).

FALL, 1905 moves --

A-H (Open) -- A War (U); A Ukr (U); A Tyo (U); A Ven (U); F Apu (U).

ENG (Brooks) -- F Mid-Por; F Iri (S) F Nat-Mid; F Lon (S) F Nwy-NtS; F NtS-Hel; F Nwy-NtS; A Kie (H).

FRA (Open) -- F Bre (U); F Bel (U); A Ruh (U); A Hol (U); F Lyo (U); A Tus (U).

RUS (Naus) -- A Mun (S) ENG A Kie; A Ber (S) ENG A Kie; A Mos-StP; A Sev-Rum.

TUR (Tretick) -- F Ion-Tun; F Aeg-Ion; F Alb-Tri (A Alb, not F); A Vie (S) F Alb-Tri; A Bul-Ser; F Arm-Sev; F Bla (S) F Arm-Sev; F Nap-Tyn.

Supply Centers held at end of FALL '05 (no AUT retreats) --

A-H -- ~~Ser~~, Tri, Ven, ~~Vie~~, War (remove two units). (3)

ENG -- Den, Edi, Lvp, Lon, Nwy, ~~StP~~, Swe, Por, Kie (may build one unit). (8)

FRA -- Bel, Bre, Hol, Mar, Par, ~~Vit~~, Spa (stands pat; only 6 units on board). (6)
 GER (NEUTRAL) -- ~~Vit~~. (0)
 ITA (NEUTRAL) -- Rom. (1)
 RUS -- Ber, Mos, Mun, ~~Set~~, Rum, StP (may build one unit). (5)
 TUR -- Ank, Bud, Bul, Con, Gre, Nap, ~~Rum~~, Smy, Tun, Ser, Sev, Vie (may build three units; was one unit short last year). (11)

Propaganda --

Moscow -- First the Austrian puppet shows his true colors, and NOW the Barbarian hordes descend on the gates of Sevastopol! WHO is Russia's friend in this darkest hour? ENGLAND -- who asked for Russian aid and then repays it with a treacherous pact with the Barbarian Turks? TURKEY -- who asked for Russian non-intervention in its war with Austria and Italy and now repays it in Russian blood? The only country left is FRANCE -- and he has his own problems. If England is treacherous, I will help France blow him out of Germany -- just communicate. What say, baby? #### Oh, the life a peaceful and honest nation must lead with all this treachery and needless bloodshed -- what ever happened to the true people whose only beliefs were in God, Mother, the flag, and Apple Pie? (Yech.)

Deadline for WINTER, 1905 builds/removals -- Noon, Tues., July 23 (SPRING '06 moves will be due August 6, so start conducting your diplomacy now!).

DJI (3x3 Team Game with Wild-Card Player II) -- COMPLEXION OF WAR CHANGES AS GERMANY SUDDENLY SWITCHES SIDES! ANARCHY IN FRANCE!

The Players, Rules & Board -- See DPSA #'s 7 & 16, LIMBO #1, & DPBA #25. A replacement player is needed for Carey (FRANCE); contact GM NLT Jul 23 if interested.

SPRING, 1904 moves -- (The countries played by the Team Captains are underlined)

Team A: A-H (Lebling) -- F Ion-Apu; F Adr (S) F Ion-Apu; A Tyo (S) GER A Bur-Swi; A Vie (S) A Tyo; A Tri-Ven; A Per-Syr.

RUS (Naus) -- F Chr (S) A Sto-Got (F Chr (A)); F Got-Bal; F Trm-Nwg; A Sto-Got; A Fin-StP; A Trd (U); F Arc (S) F Trm-Nwg; F Bla (H); A Syr-Arm.

TUR (Gemignani) -- F Can-Ion; F Aeg (S) F Can-Ion; F EME (S) F Can-Ion; A Smy (H); A Trp-Tun.

Team B: ENG (Huff) -- F Edi-Yor; F Nwg-Chr; F Nat (C) A Ice-Lvp; A Ice-Lvp.

FRA (Open) (moves made by Team Capt.) -- A Pic-Par; A Mad-Por (NEU A Por (A)); F Mid (H); A Pie-Tyo; A Tus-Pie; F Tyn (S) ITA F Sic-Ion; F Tun (S) ITA F Sic-Ion.

ITA (Brooks) -- A Apu (S) A Ven (A Apu D (Rom or o.b.)); A Ven (S) FRA A Pie-Tyo; F Nap (S) F Sic-Ion; F Sic-Ion.

Wild-Card: GER (McIntyre) -- F Hel-Den; F Den-Bal; F Brm-Kie; F Ska (S) ENG F Nwg-Chr; F NtS (S) ENG F Nwg-Chr; A Bur-Swi (NEU A Swi (A)); A Mun (S) A Bur-Swi; A Ber-Pru; A Hol-Brm; A Bel (H).

Deadline for SUMMER, 1904 retreat (ITA: A Apu) -- Noon, Tues., July 23 (Deadline for FALL '04 moves will be August 6).

GM Note -- We are following the same policy in DJI as in PDB: i.e., players must send their moves to their Team Capt. in advance of the deadline. If the Team Capt. does not receive a set of moves from a player, he may send in a set for that player himself. If he does receive a set from the player, he may change no more than two moves in forwarding them to the GM.

DKJ (Lebling Variant) -- ANARCHY CONTINUES IN AUSTRIA-HUNGARY AS CIVIL DISORDER INCREASES IN ENGLAND! TURKISH GUNS STRANGELY SILENT!

The Players, Rules & Board -- See DPSA #'s 7 & 10, & VARIOSO #1. Replacement is needed for Budd (A-H), and, unless he notifies the GM he is still playing by Jul 23, Bischoff (ENG); if interested, contact GM (with WINTER orders) NLT July 23.

FALL, 1904 moves --

A-H (Open) -- A Gal (U); A Tyo (U).

ENG (Bischoff??) -- F NtS (U); F Lvp (U); F Enc (U).

- FRA (Brooks) -- F Spa(SC) (S) F Por-Mid; F Por-Mid; A Bre (H); A Pic (S) GER A Ruh-Bel; F Wal-Lon.
- GER (Gemignani) -- F Den-Swe; A Ruh-Bel (NEU A Bel (A)); A Mun (H).
- ITA (Huff) -- A Ven-Tyo; F Ahr-Tri; F Apu (S) F Ion; F Ion (H); A Ser (S) RUS A Rum-Bul.
- RUS (Latimer) -- A Bud-Rum; A Rum-Bul; A War (H); A Sil (S) F Bal-Ber; A Ukr (H); F Bal-Ber; F Bot-Swe.
- TUR (Lebling) -- F EMe (U); F Aeg (U); F Smy (U); F Bla (U); A Gre (U).
Supply Centers held at end of FALL, 1903 (no AUTUMN retreats) --
- A-H -- Bud, ~~Ber~~ (remove one unit). (1)
- ENG -- Edi, Lvp, ~~Lpn~~ (remove one unit). (2)
- FRA -- Bre, Mar, Par, Por, Spa, Lon (may build one unit). (6)
- GER -- ~~Ber~~, Den, Kie, Mun, Bel (may build one unit; only 3 units on board). (4)
- ITA -- Nap, Rom, Tri, Tun, Ven, Ser (may build one unit). (6)
- RUS -- Mos, Rum, StP, Sev, Swe, Vie, War, Ber, Bul (may build two units). (9)
- TUR -- Ank, ~~Bul~~, Con, Gre, Smy (remove one unit). (4)
- NEUTRAL -- ~~Ber~~, Hol, Nwy. (2)
- Deadline for WINT '03 builds/removals -- Noon, Tues., July 23 (SPR'04 dl 6 Aug.).

- SBB (Hyperspace II, #1) -- TURKISH, ITALIAN FORCES MAULED AS AUSTRIA-HUNGARY, ENGLAND, AND RUSSIA CONTINUE TO EXPAND!
The Players, Rules & Board -- See SPCL #'s 10,13-15, CHAOS 1,2, & DPBA #25.
FALL, 1903 moves --
- A-H (Prosnitz) -- A Bul-Con; A Rum (S) RUS A Ukr-Sev; A Bud (S) A Rum; A Ser (S) A Tri; A Gre (S) A Bul; A Tri (H); (L) Tri & Con; (S) Tri & Aeg.
- ENG (Tretick) -- A Edi-Mun (thru hs); A Ber-Pru; F Mar-Spa(SC); F WMe (S) F Mar-Spa(SC); F Por-Tun (thru hs); A Rom-Swe (thru hs); F Swe-Den; (L) WMe & Nwg; (S) Ukr & War.
- FRA (Gemignani) -- A Mun-Ber; A Gas-Mar; (L) Ruh & Fin; (S) Mos & StP.
- GER (Bischoff) -- A Hol (S) A Ruh-Kie; A Ruh-Kie; A Bel-Par (impossible); (L) Hol & Lvn; (S) Mos & Lvn.
- ITA (Schelz) -- F Apu-Ven; F Ion-Tyn; F Tun (S) F Ion-Tyn; A Spa-Mar (D (Mun, Gas, or o.b.)); (L) Tun & Mar; (S) Rom & Swe.
- RUS (Birsan) -- A Ukr-Sev; A Mos-Lvn; F Ska-Swe; A Smy-Ank; (L) Mos & Sev; (S) Ank & Bla.
- TUR (Lebling) -- F EMe-Ion; F Aeg (S) F EMe-Ion; F Bla (S) A Con; A Sev-Ukr; (L) Con & Smy; (S) Gre & Smy.
- Supply Centers held at end of AUT '03 (retreat may affect count) --
- A-H -- Bud, Bul, Gre, Rum, Ser, Vie, Tri (may build one unit). (7)
- ENG -- Bre, Den, Edi, Lvp, Lon, Por, ~~Ven~~, Spa, Rom (may build one unit). (8)
- FRA -- Par, ~~Spa~~, Mar, Ber (may build one unit). (3)
- GER -- Bel, ~~Ber~~, Hol, Kie, Mun(?) (may build one unit, unless ITA A Spa (R) Mun thru hs, in which case stands pat; was 2 units short last year). (4 or 3)
- ITA -- ~~Mar~~, Nap, ~~Lpn~~, Tun, Ven (remove one unit, unless A Spa (R) Mun thru hs, in which event stands pat). (3 or 4)
- RUS -- Mos, Nwy, StP, War, Swe, Ank (may build two units). (6)
- TUR -- Ank, Con, Smy, Sev, ~~Tri~~ (remove two units). (3)
- Propaganda --
- England -- The English Empire is outraged at Russian Fleet maneuvers. We shall build a wall around you as did Edgar Allen Poe in the "Jug of Wine" or something....
- NSG -- What is the valence of the A-H Molecule, anyway?
- Deadline for AUTUMN, 1903 retreat (ITA: A Spa) and WINTER, 1903 builds/removals -- Noon, Tues., July 23 (SPRING, 1904 moves will be due August 9, so be warned....).

- DEE (Game of Chaos) -- PRETENDER TAKES THRONE IN ENGLAND! RUSSIA REMAINS IN STATE OF ANARCHY! ITALIAN MONARCH SEEKS SUCCESSOR!
- The Players, Rules & Board -- See DPSA #'s 1-4,9 & CHAOS #2. Conrad Von Metzke is playing ENGLAND. Replacements needed for ITALY & RUSSIA; contact GM NLT July 23.
SPRING, 1907 moves (Alternate World A) --

A-H (Naus) (by Huff) -- A Tyo-Vie; A Vie-Gal; A Bud-Rum.
 ENG (Von Metzke) (by Von Metzke) -- F Nwg-Nwy; F Lon-NtS; F Wal-EnC.
 FRA (Koning) (by Koning) -- A Por-Spa; A Naf-Tun; A Mar (S) A Por-Spa.
 GER (Huff) (by Von Metzke) -- A Mun-Boh; A Bur-Mun; A Par-Pic; A Pic-Bel; A Bel-Ruh;
 F Kie-Ber; F Ber-Pru; F Nwy-Ska.
 ITA (D. Miller) (by Boskey) -- A Ser (S) A Tri; A Tri (S) A Ser; A Rom (S) A Ven; A
 Ven (H); F WMe (S) A Spa; A Spa (H); F Nap-Tyn.
 RUS (Open) (by Miller) -- A Arm-Sev; F Sev-Rum; A Rum-Ukr; A Ukr-War; A War-Pru; A
 Alb-Gre; F StP(NC)-Nwy.
 TUR (Boskey) (by Boskey) -- F Con-Ank; F Smy (S) F Con-Ank (impossible support).
 SPRING, 1907 moves (Alternate World B) --
 A-H (Naus) (by Miller) -- A Ser-Rum; A Rum-Ukr; A Gal (S) A Rum-Ukr; A Tyo-Boh; F
 EMe-Syr.
 ENG (Von Metzke) (by Koning) -- F Iri-EnC; F Gly-Edi; F Yor-Lon; A Naf-Tun.
 FRA (Koning) (by Boskey) -- A Spa (H); F WMe-Lyo.
 GER (Huff) (by Naus) -- A Par-Bur; A Bre (H); A Gas (S) A Par-Bur; A Mun (S) A Sil-
 Boh; A Sil-Boh; A Ber-Pru; A Kie-Ber; A War (H) (D (Sil, Lvn, o.b.)); F NtS-Lon;
 F Ska-NtS.
 ITA (Miller) (by Koning) -- A Gre-Ser; F Ion-Adr; F Nap-Apu; F Tyn-Ion; A Ven-Tri.
 RUS (Open) (by Boskey) -- A Ukr-War; A Mos (S) A Ukr-War.
 TUR (Boskey) (by Naus) -- A Ank-Arm; A Con-Bul; A Smy (H).
 Deadline for SUMMER, 1907 retreat (Alternate World B: GER: A WAR) -- Noon, Tues.,
 July 23 (FALL, 1907 moves due in both Alternate Worlds on August 6).

 DAA (Game of Anonymity #1) -- FRANCE AGREES TO THREE-WAY PACT WITH ENGLAND AND
 ITALY AGAINST RUSSIA! RUSSIA RAISES 3 NEW ARMIES!

The Players, Rules & Board -- See DIPSOMANIA #'s 1, 6, 8, & 13.

WINTER, 1907 builds/removals -- ITA: (E) A Gre; RUS: (B) A's War, Mos, Sev.

Propaganda --

Paris -- Rome: In regard to your latest public plea for mercy -- (1) We are not a
 "latin" country. (2) I am not a President, but a King, and (3) Our forces in Russia,
 which you guarantee not to attack, do not exist. Nevertheless, after studying the
 war situation critically, we are forced to agree that Russia, up to now our friend,
 must be put in his place. We feel that, by our hitherto unremitting attacks on
 Italy, we have given Russia great advantage, and he cannot now cry treason if we
 turn against him. Our friendship was never intended to give Russia control of
 Europe, to the ultimate disaster of France. Therefore, France, the West's strongest
 power, proposes that there be peace and cooperation among ourselves, England, and
 Italy, lead by us. In the Spring of 1908 we will attack Kiel. Italy must then at-
 tack, and will capture, Munich. England may use the knowledge of our attack on Kiel
 to his own advantage, if he can. We have a strong navy in the South, and we will
 not keep it idle. Italy must, to keep our friendship, move Tus-Rom, Pie-Tus, Ion-
 north or east, and Nap-hold or Apu. We will move our strength eastward, but pledge
 not to attack the Italian mainland. We aim at Turkey. We will not move Mar-Pie,
 either. We will move to Ion, and will keep Tyr to keep you honest. France can
 achieve her aims without attacking Italy. If you do not do as we advise, we will
 consider our offer of alliance withdrawn, will help Russia back into Mun, and oc-
 cupy Italy ourselves.

...Louis the Last

Deadline for SPR '08 moves -- Noon, Tues., July 23 (SUM '08 deadline Aug. 6).

 DCA (Game of Anonymity #2) -- ITALIAN KING RETURNS FROM EXILE, RE-ESTABLISHES ORDER
 ON THE BOOT!

The Players, Rules & Board -- See DPSA #'s 1,2,5-7,13, & LIMBO #'s 2,4. The
 ITALIAN player is still in the game. Oops. -- See also DPBA #26.

SUMMER, 1906 retreats -- ENG: A StP (R) Lvn; TUR: A Ser (R) Bud.

Propaganda --

Ankara -- Russia: I thank you for the offer and as you can see we are well on our way to removing the Austrian blight.

Paris -- London: You stay off my back, and I will help you against the Russian Bear.

Rome -- Anarchy my ass. I just missed some moves.

Deadline for FALL '06 moves -- Noon, Tues., July 23 (A/W '06 orders due 6 Aug.).

DGA (Game of Anonymity #3) -- LULL IN WAR AS WARRING POWERS PREPARE FOR FALL CAMPAIGN!

The Players, Rules & Board -- See DPSA #'s 2,5,7,8,11,13, & LIMBO #4 (& DPBA #26). Replacement still needed in A-H; if interested, send FALL moves to GM NLT 7/23.

Propaganda --

France -- Italy: How about a bear hunt?

France -- Turkey: Fight on! Help is coming.

Russia -- Italy: Peace! My moves weren't toward you. You might find fertile fields to your west.

Deadline for FALL '06 moves -- Noon, Tues., July 23 (A/W deadline Aug. 6).

DEB (Economic Diplomacy I) -- KING WILLIAM ASCENDS TO FRENCH THRONE AS FRESH UNITS ARE RAISED BY ITALY, RUSSIA, AND TURKEY!

The Players, Rules & Board -- See DPSA #'s 1,4-6,15. Linden now playing FRANCE.

WINTER, 1906 builds -- ITA (Brannan): (B) A Ven; RUS (Kuch): (B) A Sev; (B) A StP; TUR (Clark): (B) F Smy.

Financial Situation at end of WINTER, 1906 --

Country	ENG	FRA	ITA	RUS	TUR
On Hand at end of A'06	7107 pd	7267 fr	7183 li	788 ro	778 pi
Construction Costs	-	-	-19	-38	-19
On Hand at end of W'06	7107 pd	7267 fr	7164 li	750 ro	759 pi

Positions at end of WINT '06 -- ENG (Huff): F's Por, EnC, Lon, Edi (4); FRA (Linden): A's Bre, Par, Kie; F Hol (4); ITA: A's Tri, Ven, Mar, F's Adr, Lon, WMe, Spa(SC), Naf (8); RUS: A's Sev, Mos, StP, War, Den, Ber, Mun; F's Bla, Ska, NtS, Bel (11); TUR: A's Ukr, Rum, Ser; F's Smy, Con, Ank, Gre (7).

Propaganda -- St. Petersburg -- When the Turks leave our soil, we will be friends forever. Hands off Kharkov!

Deadline for SPR '07 moves -- Noon, Tues., July 30.

DIH (Economic Diplomacy II) -- REPORT OF AUSTRIAN CAPTURE OF RUMANIA IN ERROR! RUMANIAN GARRISON STILL HOLDING OUT!

The Players, Rules & Board -- See DIPSOMANIA #'s 7, 8, 12, 15, & 20.

SUMMER, 1904 retreat -- RUS (Kanner): A StP (R) Fin (1).

Financial Situation at end of SUMMER, 1904 --

Country	A-H	ENG	FRA	GER	ITA	RUS	TUR
O.H. at start of Sp'04	769 cr	725 po	77 fr	731 mk	761 li	786 ro	719 pi
O.H. at end of Sp'04	7146 cr	710 po	734 fr	729 mk	754 li	78 ro	714 pi
Retreat cost	-	-	-	-	-	-1	-
Investment payoff (1/3 of smaller of above bals.)	723	73	72	79	718	72	74
O.H. at end of Su'04	7169 cr	713 po	736 fr	738 mk	772 li	79 ro	718 pi

Deadline for FALL '04 moves -- Noon, Tues., July 23 (A/W deadline Aug. 6).

Error in DPBA #26 -- Under SPRING, 1904 moves, opp. A-H, change "A Bud-Rum (2) (NEU A Rum (A))" to "A Bud-Rum (2)"; opp. RUS, change "A Sev (S) A-H A Bud-Rum (2)" to "A Sev (S) A-H A Bud-Rum (2)". A-H did not take Rumania!

DIPLOPHOBIA is weekly; free to players; \$1.25/10 issues 1st-class; \$1/10 issues 3rd-class, 2 issues at a time. Back issues 15¢ when available. Address code: P, player in game within; S, Sample; T, Trade; W, Subscriber (no. indicates last issue of sub.); X, last issue, unless.... For trades, write GM. --Don Miller